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Docket No. : 21 008 (SEC-OSC) 

NOTICE OF IUGHT TO APPEAL 

You are hereby notified that you have the right to appeal the attached Final Order issued 
by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Banking and Securities Commission. 

If you wish to appeal this Final Order you may file a petition for review with the 
Protl10nolary of the Commonwealth Com·t of Pennsylvania that complies with the format 
and timing requirements of the applicable Pennsylvania Rules of Appellate Procedure. Pa. 
R.A.P. 1511-1561. Failure to file a petition for review within 30 clays of the mailing date of 
this Final Order will result in it becoming final and unappealablc. You may reach the 
Commonwealth Court at 717-255-1650. 

Please be advised that this Notice of Right to Appeal is not intended to and does not 
constitute legal advice, You may consult an attorney regarding your legal rights including yom 
right to appeal the Final Order or your right to file an application for rehearing or reconsideration 
under the General Rules of Administrative Practice and Procedure. 1 Pa. Code§ 35.241. 
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FINAL ORDER 

AND NOW, the Pennsylvania Banking and Secmities Commission ("Commission") issues 

this Final Order in the matter of Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Depar/111ent of Banking and 

Securities, Bureau of Securities Licensing v. Philadelphia Investment Partners, LLC and Peter C. 

Zeuli, 21008 (SEC-OSC). 

The Commission reviewed the attached p!'oposed report and proposed order, which were 

served upon the parties by letter dated April 26, 2022, )ltll'SUant to 1 Pa. Code§ 35.207. No party 

filed exceptions. The Commission placed the matter on the agenda for its regular meeting of 

August 11, 2022. 

Pursuant to the final adjudication authority granted to the Commission under section 1122-

A of the Department of Banking and Securities Code, 71 P.S, § 733-1122-A, the Commission 

issues lhis Final Order adopting the hearing officer's proposed repo1t. 

This Final Order shall be effective 30 clays after the Commission mails it. 
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HISTORY 

Thls matter presents secondaty to ml Ot'der to Show Cause ("OSC") filed by the 

Department's Bureau of Seo11rities Licensing ("Burem1" 01· "Petitioner") on Febi,ia1y 22, 2021. 

The OSC slated 6 counts 1!llde1· the Pennsylvania Secndties Act: 1 four counts foi· violation of 

§30l(f) (notice filing); 11nd, two counts for vlolationof §301 (c) (registl'ation). On March 23, 2021, 

Respondents Philadelphia fnveslment Pal'lt\ers, LLC, und Peter C. · Zeuli (collectively 

"Respondents" 01· "Respondent PIP" and/or "Respondent Ze\1li") filed a11A11swe1' and A//il'mafive 

Defenses. On Aprll 1, 2021, the Bmem1 filed a Reply to the affirmative defenses which contested 

nll assel'ted defenses. With that the pleadlng phase of this matter ended. 

By letter dated Aprll 13, 2021, Sec1:etary Vagne appoi11ted-the 1mdersigned as presiding 

officer to h@dle the matter from that point to hearing and through the publication of a proposed 

report. By order dated June 17, 2021, the undersigned scheduled a prehearing conference. The 

parties filed prehea!'lng statements on August 20, 202 I. The preheuring conference occurred as 

·scheduled and the lllldersigned set the matter for headng to occm on October 27, 2021. 

The hearing occurred as scheduled. John Chiapetta, Esquire, represented the Bureau. The 

Bureau called one witness a11d entered Exhibits A thrnugh P (each containing individual pages as 

noted in the trnnscdpt pages S - 7).' Pm1la D. Slrnffacr, Esqufrc, rep1·esented both Respondents, 

called one witness, aild entered one exhibit. The undersigned received the transcript on Decembei· 

8, 2021, m1d Issued a briefing sched11le, by ol'der, on December 10, 2021. The Jl~rlies submitted 

briefs as sohedu\ed; except, the Burnnu exercised lts prerogative and did not file n reply brlef. With 

1 Actofl972,70P.S,§1-101 et:eq.("1912Aot"). 
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the pnssing of the reply brief deadline on Murch 7, 2022, the record closed Hlld the matter becmne 

rlpe for adjudication, 

3 



JllNIHNGS OJI JIACT 

1. ResJJOndent PIP, CRD # .122733, is a New Jel'sey limited liability company with a 

prlncipal place of business at 1233 Haddonfield-Berlin Road, Unit 7, Vool'hees, NJ 08043. (OSC 

andAnswer, ~4). 

2. Respondent Peter C. Zeuli, CRD # 2270832, is mid was, at all matel'ial times, owner 

ofRespoudent PIP and an indivkhml with a 1irincipal place oflmsiness ot 1233 Haddonfield-Bedin 

Road, Unit 7, Vool'hees, NJ 08043. (OSC and Answer, ~5). 

3. Respondent Zeuli funned PIP in 2000. (NT 105; 15-6). 

4. From in or abont June 2006 through June 2019, PIP was registered with the U.S. 

Secul'itles and Exchange Commlsslmi as an investment advisor. (CE Q-001; OSC and Answer, 

~6)(0fficial notice- Department records2). 

5. From in or about June 2006 through June 2019, PIP was a federally covered 

advisor. (CE Q:oo1; O$C and Answer, im 
6. Fro in J1111e, 2006, through June, 2019, Respondent PIP was registered with the U.S . 

. Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment advisor nlld was n federally covered 

advisor. (O!'der mid Answet• ~j6, ~7). 

2 Official notice Is lnken of the Dcpai·ttnci1t's records pertnlalng to Rcspoade111s Jn nccOJ'clanco with lho rnle lhnl a 
licensing mtthol'ily may take ofllolal nollco of Its own records. Geaoral Rules of Admlnlslrallvo Prncllco nncl 
ProcodUl'e, I Pn. Code § 31. l cl saq., nt § 35.173; sea also Falasco '" Co111111011wea/th of Pe1111sylva11/a Boa/'d of 
Probal/011 and Pnl'ola, 521 A.2d 991 (Pn. Cmwlth. 1987) (The doctl'ine of officinl uolico allows nil agency to lnkc 
offiolol nolico of focts which are obvious and notorious to an expe1t In the ngency's field ond those foots conlaluecl In 
reports and records Ju lhe age11cy's files); Gleeso111» Stale fJd. <if Medicine, 900 A.2d 430, 440 (Pa. Cnlwlth. 2006), 
appeal denied, 917 A.2d 316 (Pa. 2007) (Hcenslng boa1xl may lake official nollce of Its own records). All subsc,111eut 
such refereuces wtll be cited as "Dop1n·tment records.". · · 
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7. Respondents l'elied upon the advice of legal counsel and various compliance 

consultants to ensure compliance with all registration and other regulatory requirements. (NT 105, 

111-13; 107, 115,20-25). 

8. Most 1·ecently, Respondents worked with David Kuhr of Green Bat· Consulting. 

(NT 107, 118-25- NT 108, Ll-7). 

9. From in or about September 2015, Respondent PIP obtai11ed a clie11t who is a 

resident of Pennsylvanla, which increased PIP's total number of clients who are Pe1urnylvania 

J'esidents to six. (NT 57, 17-16; OSC and Answer, ~8). 

1 O. From in or about Septembel', 2015, thl'ough June, 2019, Respondent PIP admits that 

it did not Notice File as an investment advisol' in Pennsylvania, pmsuant to Section 303(a)(iil) of 

tl1e 1972·Act, 70 P.S. § 1·303(a)(lii). (OSC mid Answer, 119; CE Q-001;NT 114, 16-9; NT 116, 

121-24; NT 119, 13-19; NT 120, LB-17). 

11. From in or about September,'2015, tlu·o11gh June, 2019, Respondent PIP collected 

$262,834 in compensation from Pennsylvania clients. (NT 58, Ll8- NT 59, L5; CE P-001). 

12. From in or nbout June, 2019, to at least September, 2020, Respondent PIP 

trnnsacted business in Pennsylvania as m1 inves(ll)ent advisor while neither registered nor exempt 

from registl'ution. (NT 59, L6 .. 14; CE Q-001; OSC and Answer, ill 0, 11 ). 

13. From in or about June, 2019, to September, 2020, Respondent PIP collected 

$173,066 in compensation from Pennsylvnnia clients. (NT 59, 16 .. 19; NT 129, L!S-24). 

14, From in or about September 2015 to 'September 2020, Respondent ·pJp collected 

$435,900 in compensation Pennsylvnni11 clients. (NT 59, 120-25; CE p .. 001; OSC and Answer, 

Pl I). 
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!5. After withdruwing its registrntion with the SBC ln June 2019, Respondent PIP 

immediately registered with New Jersey. (NT 107; Ll J.,12). 

16. Maybe a couple weeks before thck August 31, 2020, Pennsylvania application for 

registration, Resvondents became aware that they needed to register witli the Commonwealth. (NT 

109). 

17. Within weeks of becoming aware of this obligation, Respondents applied to 

register. (NT llO; L4-9). 

18. On August 31, 2020, Respondents submitted an Initial Investment Advisor 

Application (the "Application") with the Pennsylvm1ia bepartment of Banking and Securltles, 

(Bx. AOOl; NT 67, L 3-5; 68, LlS-17; 69, L2-3; 72, Lll-16). 

19. At no time prior to Respondents" Application did the Com111onwealth, 01· any · 

subdivision thereof, notify Respondents· of any registration or filing deficiencies; rather, 

Respondents' decision to submit the Application was based solely on their "intent t] to make sure 

\hat [they] were f\1lly l'eglstered ... wlth all [reqt1lred regulators]." (NT 110, 112-14). 

20. One day after submlttaL of the aJiplioation, by email dated Septembe1• 1, 2020, the 

Department requested information necessary information· not submitted with the initlal 

appllcat\011. (Ex. AOOl; NT 71, 122-25). 

21. Betw~en Se11tember 1, 2020, and December 31, 2020, Respondents supplied fmlher 

lnfo1matio11 to the DepOl'tment and coopel'atlve, by consclentlously responding, often wlthin days, 

01· even hours, after eaclt request w11s made. (NT 74-79; 82-87; l lO, L23-25). · 

22. Respondents' intention at all times betwee11 Jmw, 2015, and September, 2020, was 

to ensm·e their compliance with all regulatory oblignUons of the Commonwealth, and all other 

regulators, (NT 109, L3-8; 110, 110-14). 

6 



23, Responde11t11 were not aware at miy point between June, 2015, and September, 

2020, that they were not in compliance wlth all re(1uil'ements of Sections 301(0) and 301(f), (NT 

109, L3-l9-110, 14·17; NT 136, 16-26 -NT 37, Ll). 

24. Specifically, Mr. Zeuli testified: 

Q, Well, prior to your withdrawal of your [SEC] registration, what were 
your thoughts about whetlter 01· not yon were compliant with yom 
registration responslbilities? 

A. My intent was always being compliant with the state regulato1y 
agencies. 

Q. When did you lenm that yon needed to be registeted 111 Pennsylvmtln 
in addition to New Jersey? 

A, Shortly before we registered wlth the State of Pennsylvania. 

Q. So we saw a document that was dated September 28111 by Mt'. Kuhr 
to registet· in Pem1sylvania. Can yoi1 give us some sense of how in 
comparison to that it was-

A. Maybe a couple weeks. 

, ... 
Q. So ca11 you give i1s some idea of when the application was made. to 
register in Pennsylvania compared to when you first learned that you needed 
to be registered? 

A. Om ap1Jllcatio11 took place roughly a cm1ple weeks after we learned 
that we needed to regis\el', 

Q. And why did you register or submit the a11plicalio11 to register in 
Pennsylvania? 

A. Because om· intent was to make sure that we were folly registered 
and with nit the Bmeau's and Secnl'ities Commissions. 

Q, Did ymi at any point resist Pe1111sylvania registration? 

A. No. 

... 
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Q, Mr. Zeuli, were you trying to avoid Pennsylvania 1•egistrntlon? 

A. No. 

Q. Why not? 

A. It does not benefit me whntsoe,ver. 

Q. Is there a benefit to the fimi, Philadelphia Investment Partners Jn not 
being properly registe1•ed? 

A. No. 

Q. Is there any benefit to you indlvlclm11ly? 

A. No. 

Q, ... Wet'e you intentionally avoiding registration in Pennsylvania? 

A. No. 

Q. Were you voluntarily avoiding registration in Pennsylvania? 

A. No. 

Q. Were you acting Jn a willfol manner in avoiding registn1tion in 
Pe1u1sylva11ia? 

A. No. 

(NT 109, L3-19- 110, 14-17; NT 136, L6-26- NT 37, Ll), 

25. Respondents di cl not in lend to eschew registrntion JHlrnllqnt to Section 301( c) from June, 

2019, thrm1gh September, 2020. (NT 109, 13-19- llO, L4 .. 17; NT 136, 16-26-NT 37, 11). 

26. Respondents did not intend to eschew notice filing pm·suant to Section 301 (i) from June 

2015 tlll'ough June 2019. (NT 109, 13-19-110, L4-17; NT 136, 16-26- NT 37, Ll), 

27. No priol' enforce!nent actions have been taken against Respondents by nay stale Ol' 

federal regulators. (NT 108, L16-19). 

28, No customer complaints have been made against Resp.ondents throughout the 

co\lrse of tlteir business. (NT 111, L8- l l ). 
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29. Respondent Zeuli was Respondent PIP's con1plla11ce officer at the i·elevant time. 

(N.T. 114). 

30, ·Respondent Ze\lli hod prior expedence with both notice filing and registl'ation ln 

. Pennsylvania. (N.T. 121, N.T. 125). 

31. Respondents received all flied documents and ]lat'liclJiated folly ia the hearing and 

aftel'. Docket entdes: NT passim. 
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CONCLUSIONS OF LAW. 

1. The Depm'lment hasjudsdiction in this matte!', 1972 Act, Sections 601(n) and 702, 

70 P.S. §§ 1-601 (a) and 1-702. 

2. As the ownel' mid chief compliance officer of PIP, Respondent Zeull acted as an 

"nffiliate" of PIP within the memiing of Secti"on J 02(b) of the 1972 Act, 70 P.S. § 1-102(b), and, 

as s\1ch, caused PXP to commit the herein stated acls which viol~ted the 1972 Act. (Finding of Fact 

No.2). 

3. Fmm September, 2015, until June, 2019, Respondents wilfully conducted b11sitiess 

as ail hwcstment advisor; such business being without the benefit of notice filing Jn vlofation of 

Section 30l(f) of the 1972Act, 70 P.S. § 1-301(t). (Findings of Fact Nos. 2-30). 

4. Fmm June, 2019, until Septembe1', 2020, Respondents wilfully transacted business 

as mi investment advisor; said b11si11ess being wlthont the benefit of registration in violation of 

Section 301(c) of the 1972 Act, 70 P.S. § l-30l(c). (Findings of Fact Nos. 2-30). 

5. Respondents received notice ofthls proceeding and were afforded an oppo1t11nity 

to be heard in accordance with Section 504 of the Admi.nisll'ative Agency Law, 2 Pa .C.S. § 504. 

(Finding of Fact No. 31). 

10 

I 



DISCUSSION 

The issues presenting are whethel' Respondents violated the Act Jn their failure to Register 

and, if so, the sanction to be levied. As is lypioal, the main issues come with a cotel'ie of minor 

issues, all of which will be disoussed,3 

Bmden of Proof 

As the moving party, the B\n·eau bore the burden of establishing, to the satisfaction of the 

Secretary, that Respondents liad a duty to register and failed to do so, See ge11erctlly Bal'ra/1 v. 

State Board of Medicine, 670 A. 2d 765 (Pa. Cmwlth. 1996) .. Petitioner Bureau must satisfy this 

bmden by a preponderance of the evidence, Lcmsbel'IJ' v. Pennsylvania Public Utlllly Commission, . . 
578 A. 2d 600 (Pa. Cmwlth. 1990), appeal denied, 529 Pu. 654, 602 A. 2d 863 (1992). A 

prepondernnce of the evidence is "such proof as leads the fact-fo1de1•, .. to find that the existence 

of a contested fact is more probable than its nonexistence," Sigqfoos i1. Pennsylvania Bd of 

Probe;/ ion and Parole, 503 A. 2d I 076, 1079 (Pa, Cmwlth, 1986). It has also been described as 11 

'more likely thattnot standal'd' or evidence which is suffiole11t to tip the mythical scales, Agostino 

v. Township of Collier, 968 A. 2d 258 (Pa. Cmwlth. 2009). 

Respondent Ze11ll presented as u hllmble nmn. Being a successful person Jn n highly 

competitive i11dl1st1·y wolJld seem to require some nerve; however, that was absent from Jiis 

presentation. The gentleman presented well, Ofcom·se, that is not the end of the inquiry. 

3 In this onse, there were ingl'cdicnt Issues that Influenced if not yielded the ultimate issuo. 
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Registration and Notice Filing 

Review of the record readily reveals that Respondents were undN' an obligatioJl to notice. 

file from 2015 to 2019.'1 See Findings of Fact Nos. 5, 6, 9, 10, a11d 11; 70 P.S. §l-303(a)(iii)("A 

federally covel'ed adviser shall file wlth the depm·tment, prior to acting as a federally covered 

adviser in this State, a copy of such docume11ts as have been flled witlt the Securities and Exchange 

Commission which the department by.regulation may require .... "), Respondents foiled to notice 

file from September, 2015, tln·ough June, 2019; a pel'iod of about 45 monlhs. fo that pedod 

Respondents received $262,834 in compensation from Pennsylvania clients. Findl11gs of Fact Nos. 

10 & 11. 

Similarly, Respondents were tliereafter under a duty to register from June, 2019, to 

September, 2020, and they did not. 5 See findings of Fact Nos. 12 - 16. Speclfioally, Respondents 

submitted 011 incomplete mg!stratlon on August 31, 2020. In those 14+ months, Respondents 

received $173,066 from Pennsylvania clients. Id. Indeed, Respondents openly and commendably 

conceded - at the beginning of this administrntive litigation - that they needed to notice file and 

register. Ref. OSC mtcl Answer there too at il's 9, l O, and 1 L 

·• The l97Z Act slates R notice flling requirement: 

(i) It ls 1111lawf\1I fo1• nny federally covered ndvlse1· to co11duct 11dvlsory business In this State unless 
such person complies with the provlslons of section 303(n)(iii). 

70 P.S. § I -30 I (l). 

' Fmther tho 1972 Acl stoles that n rnglstrntlon requ!rcmont to wll: 

(c) It Is 11nlnwfi1l for nny person to lrnll$nCI business Jn this Stnte ns nn lnvcslment ndvlsw unless he 
Is so reglstel'ed 01· registered as n brokct'denlel' 111tder this net 01· 1111less he ls oxempicd from 
reglsimtlou. U is unlawful for any person to trnnsnot business h1 this State ns an investment oclvlsor 
1·eprese11tatlve unless ho is so registered or exempted fi•om roglstrntlon. 

70 P.S. § l-30 l(o). 
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Unaccepted findings of fact 

The parties submitted proposed findings of fact in thefr well-stated briefs. The fltldings of 

fact in this document are lm:gely an amalgam of the parties' proposals, Indeed, review of tho 

parties' proposed findings offoct show that, actually, there is little if any meaningful disagl'eement 

about the operative facts. However, the following proposal was rejected: 

Respondents' clients, or any othe1' Coauuony,realth 01· out-of-state citizens, were not 
affected by Respondents' lack of registration from J1111e, 2019, tlu·ough September, 
2020, nor from Respondents' foil me to notice file in the C0mmonwealthfrom June, 
2015, through June, 2019. (NT 79, L20-NT 82, Ll 1) 

Respondents' prnposed fi11dit1g 1124 at page 24 of their brief, This proposed findhig presents an 

opportunity discuss the Act. 

Respondents' noncompliance di<l affect the citizemy. Noncompliance with the law is a 

hurm to society and should he treated that way. See generally Chipman ex rel. Chipman v. Avon 

Grove School Dist., 841 A:2d 1098 (Pa. Cwmth. Ct. 2003)(violatio1i of stahite is per se irreparable 

harm for purposes of preliminary iltj\ll1ction).6 Registration statutes are common, if not ubiquito;1s, 

Jn the modem economy.7 This is, oftentimes, in part how the General Assembly chooses to 

regulate. 

A claim that a lack of registration did not ha1m miyone begs the q11estion: why is there u 

registl'ation requirement and need that policy choice, by the legislah1re, be respected? The ans'«ers 

6 CoJ'l'eet, tl>is ls not an h\lunotion motter. The Bmenu stoled Its olnlm ofter l)te conduet, not d11l'lng, nor befo1·e. The 
point remains, violation of a slatule couses ho rm lo society per se. 

7 To nnme 11 few ... !he Sollcltnllon of Fund tbr Chal'lloble Pm·poses Ac!, Act 202 of 1990 approl'cd Deo. t 9, 1990, 
10 P.S. §162. I et seq. (ohal'ilies, professional ftmdrnlsers, and prnfesslonnl l\111drnisi11g counsel); Telemm'kete1· 
Reglslrntlon Act, Act 22 of2003, 73 P.S. §2241 et Mq.; Home hnprovemen! Consumer Protection Act, Act 132 of . 
2008, 73 P.S. § 517.1, el seq.; Plant Pest Act, Acl ofDeo. 16, 1992,P.L. 1228, No. 162, 3 P.S. §258.l etsaq. (opplicublo 
lo merchants, deniers, mtd greenhouses); Real Bslale Licensing and Registrnlion Act (RllLl\A) Act of 1980, P.L. 15, 
No. 9; 63 P.S. §§455.101 et seq,; Healih Club Acl, Acl of Dee. 21, 1989, P.L. 6'12, No. 87, 73 P.S. §716[ cl seq, 
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to these questions are low-hanging fruit. The Genernl Assembly's policy choice must be respected 

Jn this formn. s 

While the oase issue is notice fili11g/registrntio11, that Actually was only mt ci111use-bo11che; 

the entre (that which really occupied the attorneys) was the concept ofwilfollness, See both b1'iefs. 

To generalize, the 1972 Act requirns wilful violation. It defines wilfol as: 

"Wilful au<l wllfnlly" mem1 the following: 

(1) , , . wilflll 1i1eans that the person aotecl Jntentionall)' in the sense that the person 
intended to do the act and was aware of what the perso11 was doing, Proof of evil 
motive or intent to vio!ftle the act or knowledge tlrnt the person's conduct violated 
the act is not rectuired. 

70 P.S. §1-102(w). Meanwhile, the 1972 Act's section dealing with administrative assessments 

specifically i11cludes the concept ofvlolation by 'omission.' 70 P.S. § J .. 6Q2,l(c)(J)(i)(" ... each 

act. or omission that con~litutes a violation of the act ... ")(emphasis added and discussed 11101•e 

folly below). Tims, Respondents argue that ihey did not vlolate the notice filing and registrntlon 

requirements because they did not wi(fillly choose to do business sans notice filing and the1tsa11s 

registrntion. 

The problem wHh Respondents' mgument is that ltvitiates the notice filing and registration 

requirements. Those requirements are there to allow the Department to regulate the lnclusll'y within 

the Commonwealth. Of course, notice and registrntion req\1irements allow for the monltol'ing of 

k11owledgeable at1d sophislicated prnctitioners. More importantly, th011gh, they allow for qt1ick 

' Respondent's language Is bCllor ln tho political fornm than in tho legnl for1im, where we simply a11ply the lnw. 
Moreover, !he ooncluslon ln lhe proposed llndlng of fact is so broad as to be obvious nrgument, if not hyperbole. How 
could one know tlrnt no-one was directly affected? Correct, these Respondenls hod no bu!'den ofpl'Oof; but, that does 
not give Jlceuso to lake.such a Icnp, Again, ns mentioned above 110ncompllonce with the low affects society. 
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and remedial enforcement against unsopbis.ticated, tmsc1·up11lo11s, and/or irresponsible providers,· 

Such peovle and organizations are eirnctly the types !hat 'would vlslt havoc (be it mal-intended 01· 

callow) on the credulous and tmwmy, i.e. those who would be harmed most, Thus, registrntion 

requirements are very important. Requiring regulators to prove that providers have a knowledge 

of the notice and registration requirements goes against the obvious intent of the law, lt would 

place an untenable b\ll'de11 of proof on regulators that simpl)' does not comport wlth the regulatory 

scheme. Reviewing the language of Subsection (w), and considering that the General Assembly 

folt the need to insertthat language al all, actually shows that legislators did not want regulntors to 

be deal with such al'guments that Respondents muke,9 

Considedng the above thoughts, the langtrnge "the person acted intentionally in the sense 

that the person intended to do the act and was aware of what th1i pei·son was doing" reqiiires proof 

that the pernon intended "to conduct advisory business Jn this State," (§301(f) notice fllh1g) and/01· 

"to transact business in this State as an investment adviser" (§301(c) regislmtion). Proof of 

knowledge of the 1972 Act and its requil'ements, then fllrlhe1· pmof of an intention to violate those 

requirements, are not. required. 10 

Respondents lament that the Bnrenu's position creates a strict liablllty .standard and that 

the Bmeau only cites one Pennsylvat1ia case discussing wilfullness. Ful'thel', Respondents argue 

that that opinion deals with fraudulent sales; not registration. Yes, the afore-quoted definition of 

wilfullness effectively cl'eates a strlct liability sta11dmd. Reudern are conunended to reread the 

' The langnngo ".,. the person Intended to do the not and was nwnro of what tho person wns doing .• ," shows thnt tho 
Genornl Assembly intended thls Iangunge to apply to ncls of commission; nol omission such us 11 lock ofl'eglstrnilon, 

10 This gives mennlng lo tho entire subsection which states, "... Proof of evil motive or Intent to violate the not or 
knowledge tbnt the pe1'01l's conduct violated the act Is not reqnlred." 70 P.S. § J -102(w). "[l]t Is nx!omnllc that In 
determining leglslntlve Intent, nil sections of the statute must be rend togetho1• nnd ht conjunction with each olhet', nnd 
consh·ued wlih l'Oference to the entire st11tute." Alls/ale Life 111s. Co. v. Com., S2 A.3d 1080 (Pn. 2012). This 
Jntc1·protntto11 gives mo1111i11g lo both sentences In subsection (w). 
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definition of wilful again, supra. As for a lack of case law, that simply cannot. be an argument 

against· a statute. No statute would ever be enfo1•ceable if caselaw were a requirement. A lack of 

caselaw shows a well-wl'itten statute, if miything; 

SanctioJl 

While the academic issue was 'wilfullness' the practical issue, as always, was money, This 

was not belabored by tho a1tomeys other 1hatt .their recomn\endations. There was not stddent 

argument about it; however, a registrntion case does not get to hearing wi1hout a dispute about 

mulct. The Bureau proposes an assessment of $108,000, 11 Respondent's atiomey protests tlrnt 

proposal is ",,, a penalty i1ot intended by the legislature" mid ci·eating a11 incentive against self-

repol'ting. 

The legislature's 1972 Act lrns this to say about sanotlons: 

(e) Aftel' givJng notice ond opportnnity fo1• a hearing, the department may issue an 
ordel' accompanied by written findings of fact and conclusions of law which 
imposes an adminlstrntive assessment in the amounts pl'ovided lt1 pamgrnph (1) 
against a. broker-dealer, agent, investment advise!' 01· investment adviser 
representative registered under section 301 01· an affiliate of any broker-dealer 01· 

investment adviser whei·e the department determines that the person withht the 
previous tell years willfully has violated this act or a mle or order of the department 
under this act or has engaged in dishonest Ol' unethical practices in the sccudties 
business; has taken 11nfolr advantage of a c11stomer; or lms foiled 1·easonably to 
supervise lls agents ol' employes or against aity other pe1·so11 if the department 
detem1lt1es that the person wilfully viofoted section 301, 401, 404, 406 thro\Jgh 409 
ot' 512(d) or a cease and desist order issued by the department 11nder section 
606(0.1). 

( 1) The department, in issuing an order under th.is subsection, may impose 
the admlnlstrntlve assessments set forth below. Each act 01• omission , , , 
shnll constitute n separate violation. 

11 $2,000 fol' o•cl1 of the 1\ viotntions of the §30 l(f) notice filing requirement m)d $50,000 for ench of the 2 viotnllous 
oflhe §30l(o) reglst1111ion requlre1lle111. 
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(1) In issuing an order against any broker-dealer, agent, Jnvestment 
advisel' Ol' investment advise!' representative registered under section 
301 01· atl affillate of a11y broker"dealel' 01· investment adviser, the 
department may impose a maxitmun administrative assessment of 
up to one hundl'ed thousand dollars ($100,000) for each act or 
omission that constitutes a violation of the act 01· rnle or order lssned 
under this act 01· that constitutes a dishonest 01· 11llethical :pi·actice in 
the secul'ities business, taking imfah· advantage of a customer, or 
failure to reasonably supervise its agents or employes. Xf any of the 
victims of the person's violative conduct were lndividtrnls aged 60 
01· more, the department also may impose a special administmtive 
assessment in. addition to the fol'egolng mnounts of up to fifty 
thousand dollars ($50,000), 

(vi) In issuing an order for 11 wllfol violation of section 301(f) 11gainst 
a person that is a federally covered adviser, the department may 
impose an administrative assessment of two thousand dollam 
($2,000). 

70 P.S. § 1-602.l(c)(l)(i) & (vi)(emphasls added). While it is at 01\e end of·the spectrnm, the 

penalties are within what the legislature intended. 

Given the language of §301 that slates that ls unlawful to "conduct" (subsection f) and 

"transact" (subsection c) l)\]siness, the 111ost'naturufreading is that each clientrep!'esents a single 

violation. On the other hand, however, the Bureau ap]Jeat's to have pro11osed a penalty based on 

calendar years, This was vel'y t'easonable. 12 

The B\H'eau entered fo1·th<!r evidence to consider re sanctions. In addition to the number of 

clients, the Bureau points out that Respondents grossed $435,000 from Pennsylvania clients in the 

relevant time period .. Finding of Fact No. 14. RespondentZeuli was tbe 01·ganization's compliance 

officet' and hud prim• expel'lence with both notice filing and registrnllon. Findings of Fact Nos, 29, 

" Tito Bul'cnu 011.tel'ed evlde11ee lhat Responde11ts lmd 6 Pennsylvania clients in 2015, evel1tunlly l'eachlng 19 
Pennsylvat1ia olienls In 2019 and 22 Pennsylvania clients by Sopte1ube1; 2020. (CE P"OO I), Conside1'lng the "en eh 
net Ol' omission .. , slrnll constitute a sepnrnlo violation" laugunge ll would seem that the Bureau did not need to go the 
dlrectlm1 ofaununlized·violnllons. 
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30. The undersigned specifically found a lack of intention to avoid notice filing and l'egistration 

(see Findlt1gs ofFnct Nos. 25, 26); however, the errors.in this highly regulated ind11stry m·e not 

excused by lack of intent. The years of noncompliance made the lack of compllance seem blitl)e. 

So too did the months of document submission to perfect registration. Finding of Fact No. 21. 

Considexing the §602. 1 ( c )(2) foctors, this pxoposal is entirely reasonable and shonld be adopted. 13 

A lower sanction wonkl lean toward cost-of-doing .. bnsiness. This is a peirnlty in a s~l'im1s matter 

from a m•ilical part of a law that covers an importnnt i11dust1y, 

For tlte aforementioned reasons the following order slrnll enter: 

13 The 1972 Act slntos: 

£10!' pu1poses of detennlning the omouut of adminisn·ntlve nssossineut to be imposed In an order 
Issued under this subsection, the depnrhnent sholl oonsiden · · 

(I) The oirc111nsla11ces, uat\n·e, ll·eq11e11cy, serlo11sn<J.ss, n1ngnitude, pet·slstcnce and \VllJft1lness of 
tho conduct constituting tho vlolatlon. 

(ii) The scope of the vlolotlon; lnciudlng tho nmnbel' of persons In ni1d ont oflhls Cotnmonwettlth 
nffeoted by the conduct constituting tho vlolntlon, 

(iii) The omount of restitution or. componsntlon that the vlololol' has mnde and tho 111u11ber of 
persous in this Commonweollh to whom the restitution or compensollon lms been mode. 

(Iv) Post ond conc111·rent couduct of the violator tlmt has given rise to uny sanctions or judgment 
lm11osed by, m· pleos of guilty' or nolo contoudere 01· settlement with, the deportment or mw 
secul'ilies nd1ninistrntor of any other state or olhc1• country, nny court of con1petent jurlsdiotlon1 

the Seclll'llles n11d Bxchonge Commission, !he Commodity Fu1111·os Trading Commission, nil)' 
other l'edernl 01· Slate agency or Rily 11nl1011ol securllles assoelatlon or nntlonol seourltles 
exchange ns defined in the Secul'ities Exchaugo Act of 1934 (48 Stnt. 881, 15 U.S.C, § 78n et 
seq.). 

(v) Ally other factor !hot the department finds opproprinte In !he pnbllc Interest or fo1· the 
protection of invcsto1·s ond consistent wilh the purposes fuh'ly intended by the policy n11d 
provisions of this ocl. 

70 P.S. §l·602(c)(2). 
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COMMONWEALTHOlrJ>ENNSYLVANIA 
DEPARTMENT OF BANICTNG AND SECURITIES 

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
DEPARTMENT OF BANKING AND 
SECURITIES, BUREAU OF SECURITIES 
LICENSING 

v. 

PHILADELPHIA INVESTMENT 
PARTNERS, LLC 

PETER C. ZEULI 

.. 
Docket No.; 21 0008 (SEC-OSC) 

ORDER 

AN]) NOW this d ~¥A day of April, 2022, based on the foregoing Finding~ of Fact, 

Conchislons of Law, m1d Discusslon it is hereby ORDERED as follows: 

Respondents Philadelphia Investment Partners, LLC, and Peter C. Zeuli shall pay an 

administrative assessment of $2,ooo for each of the 4 violations of Section 30 l(t), 70 P .S. § 1-

301(1), fol' a total assessment in the mnount of $8,000 pursuant to Section 602.l(c) of th'e 1972 

Act, 70 P.S. §1-602.l(c). Respondents shall be jointly and severally liable for payment of this 

assessment. 

Respondents Philadelphia Investment Pa1faers, LLC, and Peter C. Zeuli shall pay an 

administrative assessment of $50,000 for each of the 2 violations of Section 30l(c), 70 P.S. § 1-

301(c), fo1· a total assessment in the amorn1t of$100,000 ptirsuant to Seclio11602.1(c) of the 1972 

Act, 70 P.S. §1-602.l(c). Respondents shall be jointly and severnlly liable for payment of this 

assessment. 

Payment of the administrative assessment shall be by certified check, attorney's check, or 

U.S. Postal Service money order made payable to th(} "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania," and shall 
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